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A bill relating to nonresident waterfowl hunting licenses. 
 

Minutes:                                                 2 Attachments  

 
Chair Unruh: Opened the hearing, all committee members were present.  
 
Senator Howard Anderson, District 8 (1:00-1:58) introduced the bill. This bill allows an 
expansion in what sort of artificial light they can use, mostly for hunting coyotes. I think they 
did a good job in the background, working with interested parties, at least getting their 
acquiescence to the way it was written. I like to disclose both sides of an argument when I 
testify on a bill, several Senators and Representatives have informed me that last weekend 
when they were home, there were quite a few coyotes howling their oppositions to this bill.  
 
Rick Tischaefer, President North Dakota Fur Hunters and Trappers Association (2:30-
3:20) Testified in favor, please see attachment #1.  
 
Chair Unruh:  Would these options listed be widely used by folks? 
 
Rick Tischaefer: They are currently unavailable, because they are considered illegal. This 
basically codifies the equipment, advances our century code and marries it with the current 
technology available.  
 
Senator Cook: With the lights listed here, how far can you see? 
 
Rick Tischaefer: With good nighttime conditions, 150-200 yards. As light travels, it gets 
absorbed but things. Terrain is an issue, trees, rocks, grass, those types of things. If you 
have a clear view of things, like a cattle pasture, you might advance that several hundred 
yards. It depends on what’s being shown. 
 
Senator Cook: The bullet you’re using will travel father than that. 
 
Rick Tischaefer: Yes, depending on the caliber, certainly.  
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Vice Chair Kreun: Is there an abundance of these furbearers that are a nuisance at this time 
to precipitate the use of artificial light? 
 
Rick Tischaefer: North Dakota is blessed with an abundance of furbearers, especially the 
foxes and coyotes. We have an excellent habitat, they do very well in North Dakota, as far 
as abundance goes, it varies with terrain. 
 
Senator Roers: Is night time hunting of coyotes and furbearers a normal practice, is that 
done frequently? 
 
Rick Tischaefer: Yes, in the past, we were allowed only by moonlight. Which required some 
special conditions; moonlight, snow on the ground, wintertime. It depended on the conditions 
as to how many folks participated in that. A few years ago, with the allowance of thermal and 
night vision equipment, that increased the amount of folks interested in going out and night 
hunting. Because you don’t have to rely on the weather or the moon to be shining to use this 
advanced technology these days. There is an increased level of participation, as a result. 
 
Senator Roers: The safety issue is my concern. How safe is it going to be if we have people 
out there with infrared light hunting in less than desirable conditions? 
 
Rick Tischaefer: The basic premise behind this bill is human safety. It’s providing that ability 
to use light, a night vision scope by itself has very little effect on being able to see, because 
it relies on starlight. So you need open sky in order for it to work properly. The infrared 
illuminator attached to that acts as a flashlight for that scope so you can see very well in 
lower light or cloud cover conditions. The individual lights that are described in there, the red, 
green, or amber filter lights are used to not only traverse the ground and get into those 
hunting spots, but be able to see what’s in front of you, identify your target properly, clear 
any malfunctions with your weapon, adjust your equipment, know where your hunting partner 
is, and things like that. The basic premise of all this is to add a measure of safety to this. 
Because of exactly what you brought up, if you take a thermal device or night vision that’s 
scope mounted out there, you will have to continually look through your scope, which means 
the weapon is at your shoulder, in order to walk somewhere, so you don’t get a stick in your 
eye or to see what your targets, or the potential targets would be. This light and that infrared 
illuminator, for folks that use that particular night vision technology, it’s going to be helpful, it 
will provide that measure of safety for them.  
 
Pete Hanebutt, North Dakota Farm Bureau (8:35) testified in favor. Years ago we put 
policy into our book, that says ‘We support the use of artificial light for enhanced predator 
control.’ It was talked about how we are blessed with a great coyote population in this state, 
I can tell you that our cattle people notice it when they lose calves. It is a problem in rural 
parts of the state. We see this as an opportunity to kill vermin, which is good for us. We 
support this wholeheartedly. If I take off my Farm Bureau hat, as a hunter I see this as a 
public safety enhancement, not a detraction. I grew up in a state where we used artificial 
lights for coyotes and foxes, it makes things safer when you can see what you’re looking at. 
In my view, that’s not my expertise.   
 
Senator Dale Patten, District 39 (9:45) Testified in favor. There’s been some questions 
as to why you hunt at night; that is when the coyotes and the foxes hunt as well. So they’re 



Senate Energy and Natural Resources Committee  
SB 2058 
1/17/19 
Page 3  
   

out invisible. During the day they’re holed us and unavailable, that is one of the reasons it’s 
much easier to be successful when you’re hunting.  
 
Douglas Dixon, Hunter (10:30) Testified in favor. The question of safety came up. In my 
work life I was a safety director, safety has been high on my list of things while I was working, 
now that I’m retired, I also hunt coyotes at night. I have an infrared scope, because of the 
present law, I can’t use the infrared attachment. It still gives me a vision at night. When I first 
bought it, I was amazed at how well you could see. I have turned on the infrared light to see 
the enhancement, it does provide quite the difference, which to me only improves the safety 
factor. I haven’t used the amber or green, but from the infrared standpoint, I see it as a huge 
enhancement to safety.  
 
Scott Peters, Deputy Director, North Dakota Game and Fish Department (12:22) 
Provided neutral agency testimony. Mr. Tischaefer worked closely with our department 
and Senator Anderson and Representative Longmuir to draft this bill; we had ample 
opportunity to review the bill draft, we can live with this. I sent an email the other day about 
a suggested amendment. On the last sentence of the bill draft, we would suggest that we 
insert somewhere in the last sentence, the three words ‘while hunting afoot,’ while that 
suggested amendment would not change the context of the bill, we feel it adds a little 
consistency because in subsection 20.1-01-08 line 16, we do have that wording in there. It 
would add some consistency and at the same time, eliminate any opportunity for someone 
to interpret this as being an allowable activity in or on a motor vehicle. We wanted to suggest 
that.   
 
Senator Cook: I can’t get my arms around this. You’ve got a light that goes 150 yards, so 
you can see what it is you want to shoot at, but you’ve got ammunition that’s going to go a 
lot farther. You can’t see what’s standing behind that target. How is that a safety 
improvement? 
 
Scott Peters: A little history, we already allow night hunting for fox and coyote for quite some 
time, 15 to 20 years. About 3 years ago at the instance of a then-legislator, we took that a 
step further and allow thermal imaging and night vision for use hunting fox and coyote at 
night, initially we did get some push back; since that time, we’ve received very minimal 
complaints about the safety factor.  I’m told the infrared light enhances the safety feature of 
the night vision.  As to how you identify a target, the ability to use infrared illuminators in a 
scope they already have will be beneficial. I know there’s legitimate safety concerns out there, 
but we’re told by the industry that this will improve that. Allow you to identify your target better.  
 
Chair Unruh: Closed the hearing.  
 
Attachment #2 was submitted via email, Julie Ellingson, North Dakota Stockman’s 
Association, stand in support.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to use of infrared, red, green, or amber artificial light while hunting coyote and 
fox. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No attachments 

 
Chair Unruh: Opened committee action 
Chair Unruh:  This bill has to do with the use of infrared light while hunting coyote and fox, 
and we did not receive any testimony in opposition. 
 
Senator Schaible: I move moved a Do Pass  
Senator Piepkorn: I second. 
  
A roll call vote was taken 
Motion passes 5-0-1. 
 
Senator Schaible will carry. 



Date: _ __._1/_L_</..,___ 
Roll Call Vote #: __ .....__ __ 

2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. jesg 
Senate Energy and Natural Resources 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Committee 

-----------------------

Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 
� Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 

D As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By .5dt.u/b/e,,,, Seconded By 

Senators Yes No 
Senator Jessica Unruh y 
Senator Curt Kreun )C 
Senator Donald Schaible 
Senator Dwight Cook X 

No Total 

Absent 

(Yes) 
-----------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Senators 
Senator Jim Roers 
Senator Merrill Piepkorn 

0 

Yes No 

k 



Com Standing Committee Report 
January 24, 2019 1:11PM 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_ 14_020 
Carrier: Schaible 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2058: Energy and Natural Resources Committee (Sen. Unruh, Chairman) 

recommends DO PASS (5 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
SB 2058 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_ 14_020 



 
 
 
 
 

2019 HOUSE ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES   
 

SB 2058 

 

 

 

 

  



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Energy and Natural Resources Committee 
Coteau A Room, State Capitol 

SB 2058 
2/28/2019 

33014 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to use of infrared, red, green, or amber artificial light while hunting coyote and fox  
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Porter: Opened the hearing on SB 2058. 
 
Sen. Howard Anderson, Dist. 8, introduced the bill. He has a constituent in the Furtakers 
Association and asked to add these, a little extra light in hunting coyote and fox.  
 
Rep. Longmuir, Dist. 2: presented Attachment 1 which included an amendment. 
 
Chairman Porter: questions? Further testimony in support?   
 
John Bradley, Executive director of the ND Wildlife Association:  here to stand in support 
of the bill.  
 
Pete Hanebutt, ND Farm Bureau: In support for predator control.  
 
Chairman Porter: questions? Support? Opposition?  closed the hearing.   
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to use of infrared, red, green, or amber artificial light while hunting coyote and fox  
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Vice Chairman Damschen: Opened the hearing on SB 2058. 
 
Rep. Anderson:  presented Attachment 1 which is Amendment 19.0501.01003. I basically went to 
the G&F and we’re going to have a small habitat program for some spots around tree farmsteads and 
other areas to provide nesting cover and winter cover, and food plots for wildlife. G&F will probably 
work with USDA NRCS because they have programs there. We intend on getting some money, $2 
million from the ND Outdoor Heritage Fund and Access Improvement Fund. This is for a 2 year period. 
We also are going to take $500,000 out of the Heritage Fund for a special roads fund for access 
around Lake Sakakawea. The G&F is going to take $500,000 out of their private land habitat and 
access improvement fund. We’re going to declare this an emergency measure to get these food plots 
and habitat improvements in place for this year.  
 
Rep Bosch:  This seems outside the scope of the Heritage Funds? 
 
Rep. Anderson: I don’t think we have. Currently there’s about $9 million in the outdoor heritage fund 
and we anticipate another $15 million.  With the possibility of the no trespassing bill passing I think 
we need more habitat for wildlife and provide more hunting opportunities. In 2014 they had the wildlife 
incentive program through the USDA NRCS and that kind of went by the wayside. In my case, I have 
some abandoned farmsteads for food for the wildlife.  In the winter that’s where they end up. People 
say it’s going to be a small area but if you can keep a population, like pheasants, alive in the winter, 
they will move out in the spring and provide more hunting opportunities.  
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  The concern is we’re giving government money to private land owners to 
improve habitat on their property but unlike the PLOTS this does not require to leave the land open 
for hunting. The landowners can improve their own property and keep that closed for their own private 
use. I’m wondering if this is going to compete with our PLOTS program. 
 
Rep. Anderson:  I know that’s been a concern. I thought in order to get the landowners to participate, 
I’d leave it up to them whether or not they would allow hunting. My whole idea here is basically if you 
start out the year with 100 pheasants and you get your population down below 30, you start to lose 
population for hunting. I thought if we could have some areas where there would be a chance for the 
wildlife to better survive the winter, that when spring came and fall there’d be spillover. Those birds 
aren’t going to stay in that small area. I think it will improve hunting for everyone.   
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Rep. Roers Jones: the program we’re looking at funding, how long has this been in existence? If I 
understand correctly, the program is partially federal dollars and we’re looking to make up the portion 
that would otherwise be paid for by the landowner? Is that correct? 
 
Rep. Anderson: the only federal dollars are an excise tax on running the G&F. There’s an excise tax 
on hunting and fishing equipment. Otherwise it’s basically the Heritage Fund. There are some add-
ons that you could do through USDA NRCS.  
 
Rep. Zubke: you talk about management plans in deer depredation in F and G. I know the G&F does 
some fencing now around hay yards. One of my concerns would be fencing everyone’s hay yard in 
western ND because of the elk and deer?    
 
8:26 
 
Rep. Anderson:  Section 2 is pretty much already in Century Code.  Most of the language I have 
that’s new is on the last page. I probably didn’t answer your questions. 
 
9:00 
 
Rep. Zubke:  The question I have is appropriating more money for it. Is that going to increase the 
prevalence of doing that fencing. Maybe we’re doing a lot already. I know there are instances where 
we are. 
 
Rep. Anderson:  I would think that would make things better because these plots won’t be fenced. 
It’ll probably keep the deer away from some being in someone’s hay. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones: in Section 6, the transfer to the roads funds. Can you tell us about that and what 
that’s for? 
 
Rep. Anderson: That was a request to fund some access roads around Lake Sakakawea. 
 
Rep. Mitskog:  I’m looking at what we can use those Heritage Funds for, it says we can’t use for any 
paving project for a road. Do you know the details of the road project?  
 
Rep. Anderson: No I do not.  It was a request made when I went to the appropriations process.  
 
Rep. Eidson: is it common for us to allocate funds from the outdoor heritage fund to projects we want 
to do? From what I understand, I’m looking up to make sure, this is to provide grants to state agencies, 
tribal governments, political subdivisions and non-profit organizations with particular priorities. Is it 
common for us to pass legislation that allocates that money that has already been allocated for these 
purposes?  
 
Rep. Anderson:  no it is not, this is probably a new concept. They’re sitting there with $9,000,000 
and I know hunting is huge in the state of ND. I’m just trying to provide some funds for habitat. There’s 
a pot of money there and I think we should be using it. 
 
Rep. Eidson:  I absolutely agree. I do know during outdoor day recently, I spoke with every 
organization that had a booth and different organizations apply for funds and get down because of 
lack of funds. From what I understand these have a particular purpose; while there may be some in 
there now there are plenty of projects that are vying for those different projects. Personally I don’t 
want to see us step in and allocate that money that other organizations that are mentioned here are 
trying to get that money for.  
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Rep. Anderson:  I know you have concerns about that but there’s $9 million in there now and there’ll 
be another $15 million in there. If they’re holding money over I think we should try to use it. This is a 
2-year program. I do think down the road the Outdoor Heritage Fund will be adding more money to 
the PLOTS program because we need more cover for the wildlife.  
 
Vice Chairman Damschen turned the meeting back over to Chairman Porter:  
 
Vice Chairman Damschen:  I’m wondering; it’s been alluded to there’s a process to getting that 
money from the Outdoor Heritage Fund. Can we appropriate it without going through that process? 
Are we assuming something here that isn’t going to happen?  
 
Chairman Porter: I do believe because those are not restricted funds, they are allocated in the flow 
of the bucket, that they can be appropriated.  
 
Rep. Anderson:  I would like to move the amendment for .01003. 
 
Rep Heinert:  second. 
 
Chairman Porter: We have a motion and a second to adopt 19.0501.01003. Discussion? This is 
going to a pilot project for private land to be used in addition to NRCS granting program for habitat to 
do the private landowner match.  
 
Rep. Bosch:  I’m not going to support the amendment. I think this is outside the scope of the Heritage 
Fund. There’s plenty of applications that don’t get approved. I think if we’re trying to think outside the 
box, that’s great, I don’t think this is a good idea. I’m not going to support the amendment. 
 
Rep. Mitskog:  My earlier question was regarding Sec.6, the transfer to the special roads fund from 
the outdoor heritage fund. I have a question whether or not that can be done under Chap.54-17.08, 
the Outdoor Heritage Fund, and it says what these funds can and can’t be used for.  Under No.3 it 
says the commission or grantee may not use grant funds for a paving project for a road. I have 
questions if we can do this. 
 
Rep. Anderson: I don’t think it’s going to be used for paving, more for access around Lake 
Sakakawea to some of the areas. You wouldn’t pave very much with $500,000.  
 
Rep. Eidson:  I also want to echo what Rep. Bosch said and what I eluded to earlier. I appreciate the 
intent of this, it’s a good thing, we’re thinking outside the box but I think there’s other funds we can 
look to. I think the Outdoor Heritage Fund has a very particular purpose geared towards organizations 
outside of this legislative body, to name a couple, Pheasants Forever, Ducks Unlimited, etc. There 
are plenty of organizations that could use this money. As I said, I talked to them when we had Outdoor 
Day; they have plenty of projects, some get passed, some don’t. I think if we have extra money in 
there that means we should make that known to those organizations so we can get some of those 
other projects that weren’t funded this last time, funded this go round. I will not be supporting the 
amendment. 
 
Rep Heinert:  I second the amendment. I think this is important. We’re talking about individual 
landowners here who see something on their property that they think they can help out with keeping 
our critters alive during the winter months. I think it’s important because I think these other 
organizations mentioned today are looking at bigger projects and more significant projects. I think 
these little projects then go by the wayside and we leave it up to the individual landowners and I think 
we need to support them. If they want to keep critters running around out there, they’re going to help 
support us, utilize this money and help develop something like Rep. Anderson has been talking about.  
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Rep. Anderson:  I know there’s a lot of good comments developing large areas. If you know anything 
about wildlife, they basically survive in small pockets. They need escape cover. As far as putting in a 
huge area designated wildlife, I don’t think it does as much good as small confined areas where the 
wildlife can move about. If you go out in the winter, you watch wildlife go from one cover area to 
another. That’s the way it’s always been.  You can see wildlife move from one shelterbelt to another 
where they can get food. The less exposure the greater the survivor ability.  
 
Chairman Porter:  in the past we have done many projects with ND G&F to be the cost share vehicle 
for soil conservation projects, for tree planting, for nesting cover, all sorts of different project. When 
we use the hunters dollars, we’ve always said the land is then open to public hunting because we’ve 
used the hunters dollars.  This project is using oil revenue out of a bucket to go to G&F, to do the 
same thing as those PLOTS projects without the caveat that the land is open for public access. So if 
there’s a group of people that really want to do something to enhance wildlife, they also have a way 
to do that. The reason it’s going to G&F is that’s where the biologists work at the G&F.  The argument 
that the land should be open to the public hunting is the difference between the 2 project types.  The 
one important thing to realize is that if you have someone with a really good habitat, that game is 
going to have that as ground zero for their nesting and survival, and during the seasons the 
opportunities are going to be in the square miles of area where you will see the difference in those 
seasons. I applaud what the project is trying to accomplish. Are we going to use Outdoor Heritage 
Fund money that’s flowing down through the bucket in order to do a really good project?  
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  the program we’re looking at is already in operation? 
 
Chairman Porter:  kind of. The dollars would enhance programs inside of the Soil Conservation out 
of USDA, wildlife tree plantings, dense cover tree plantings, water ways, various grass plantings for 
wildlife. Typically, they come with 75-80% match. The landowner has to come up with 20-25% in 
order to do the project.  When G&F is a partner with the landowner on a project, then they’re entering 
that through PLOTS. That’s where access comes in. I can get the program without any cost share 
and pay for it myself. If I want G&F dollars from the hunters, then that pulls me into the PLOTS 
program where I give up access. This would be managed by G&F without an access component. 
They would still be going after federal dollars, this would be the landowner match, they’d still be 
signing the contract and sign a contract with the government.  
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  the parameters for how the money is awarded and what must be done, how do 
they choose who gets access to funds through G&F where it has to be open to hunters, how do they 
chose who gets the funds through this new program where they don’t have to provide access to the 
land and how do we determine what parts of the state are being augmented.  
 
Chairman Porter: each county puts in for their share of conservation dollars available through the 
farm bill each federal cycle. They take the application. The application is through Soil Conservation. 
Then they would have the knowledge of the PLOTS program and this would be another program 
available to them and get the match.  Landowners have the ability to pay for it themselves. There’s 
limited federal dollars in that program. It’s not every project that wants or can be funded.  Same as 
putting in water systems, cross fencing.  
 
Rep. Anderson:  this is just going to provide a little more incentive. I have a lot of landlords that have 
spots that should be left for wildlife. They say why don’t you farm it so I at least get enough money to 
pay the taxes in those cases. A lot of this should be left for wildlife. If they could get enough so they’re 
satisfied, you’d be able to provide habitat for wildlife. As far as access to hunting, I’m not as concerned 
as I am cover for the wildlife. I’m just trying to keep the survivability at a higher rate. They need 
protection and food.  
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Rep. Keiser:  I support the general concept suggested, the use of Heritage Fund dollars I’m totally 
opposed to. As a brief history, the Heritage Fund dollars were put on the ballot, and we really 
neutralized that effort because we developed the Heritage Fund in this committee and put the dollars 
into it for those organizations. The $9 million is not a lack of applications but the downturn in oil, now 
it’s rebounded.  A couple years ago a lot of applications were rejected.  Find a different source of 
funding. 
 
Roll call vote:  7 yes,   7 no   0 absent.  Motion failed.  
 
Chairman Porter: Rep. Anderson, the other option is to propose the amendment with a general fund 
appropriation and then take it to appropriations. 
 
Rep. Anderson:  Move amendment 01003 and to replace the Outdoor Heritage Fund with the general 
fund dollars in the amendment. 
 
Rep. Keiser:  second. 
 
Chairman Porter: We have a motion and a second to adopt amendment 01003 and to replace the 
Outdoor Heritage Fund with the general fund dollars in the amendment. Discussion?  Voice vote, 
motion carried. 
 
Rep. Keiser:  move a Do Pass as further Amended and rerefer to Appropriations. 
 
Rep. Eidson:  second. 
 
Chairman Porter: we have a motion and a second for a Do Pass as further Amended and rerefer to 
Appropriations. Discussion?   
Roll call vote:  14 yes,  0 no,  0 absent.  Rep. Anderson is carrier. 
 
Rep. Ruby:  Going back to the bill I carried, bills dealing with the same section of code, one passed 
before the other so we had to do that whole arrangement.  Here we have a bill dealing with artificial 
light. So if it passes in the Senate and this happens to die on the floor, does that mean we can’t use 
that light?  
 
Chairman Porter: No, we amended the HB in the Senate with the corrections that were asked for. 
So there will only be one bill that deals with artificial light.  That bill passed. 
 
Rep. Ruby:  We didn’t move the artificial light in this one did we?  
 
Chairman Porter: no that was hoghoused out. All that’s left is what Rep. Anderson asked for. 
 
Rep. Ruby: where does it say that? It just adds the second section. It’s not amended out. I think the 
last one passed takes precedence. 
 
Chairman Porter: In your amendment when you talked to council, this was to replace and remove 
the section 1 in SB 2058 wasn’t it?   
 
Rep. Ruby:  I would move to reconsider our actions on SB 2058. 
 
Rep. Devlin:  second. 
 
Chairman Porter:   voice vote. Motion carried. 
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Rep. Ruby:  move that we further amend SB 2058 to remove Sec. 1 and 2 from the bill. 
 
Rep. Keiser:  second. 
 
Chairman Porter:   We have a motion and a second to further amend and remove Sections 1 and 2 
from SB 2058 from 01000.  Voice vote, motion carried. 

 
Rep. Marschall: when we say remove Sections 1 and 2, we amended the bill and added 
Section 2.  
 
Chairman Porter: We said we removed Section 1 and 2 from version 01000. 
 
Rep. Keiser:  move a Do Pass as further Amended to SB 2058 and rerefer to Appropriations. 
 
Rep. Bosch:  Second. 
 
Chairman Porter:   discussion?  Roll call vote:  14 yes, 0 no, 0 absent.  Rep. Anderson is 
carrier.      
 
Closed the hearing. 
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      Committee Clerk, Kathleen Davis 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to use of infrared, red, green, or amber artificial light while hunting coyote and fox  
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Porter:  Opened the hearing on SB 2058 to reconsider. 
 
Rep. Ruby: so moved. 
 
Rep. Anderson:  second. 
 
Chairman Porter:   we have a motion and a second to reconsider our actions whereby we passed 
out SB 2058. Discussion?  Voice vote, motion carried. 
 
Rep. Anderson:  presented Attachment 1, Amendment 19.0501.01005.  That Section 4 wasn’t put 
in on the amendment so the G&F was going to put $500,000 in from their private land and habitat 
access improvement fund. This is putting that section back in.  
 
Chairman Porter: that was in the original motion and it was in the original discussion it was an error 
when we signed it and sent it on. We thought we could just change the report and legislative counsel 
said it has to come back and be reconsidered, fix, and sent back. 
 
Rep. Anderson: move the adoption of the amendment. 
 
Rep. Keiser:  second. 
 
Chairman Porter: We have a motion and a second to move 1005. Discussion?   
Voice vote, motion carried. 
 
Rep. Anderson: move a Do Pass as Amended and rerefer to Appropriations. 
 
Rep. Keiser:  second. 
 
Chairman Porter: We have a motion and a second for a Do Pass as Amended and refer to 
Appropriations. Discussion? 
Roll call vote:  11 yes,   2 no,   1  absent.  Rep. Anderson is carrier.  
 



• 

• 

• 

19.0501.01003 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative D. Anderson 

March 20, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2058 

Page 1, line 1, replace "sections" with "section" 

Page 1, line 1, after "20.1-01-08" insert ", subsection 17 of section 20.1-02-05," 

Page 1, line 1, after the second "and" insert "section" 

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "the powers of the director of the game and fish department and 
the" 

Page 1, line 3, after "fox" insert "; to provide an appropriation; to provide for a transfer; and to 
declare an emergency" 

Page 1, after line 19, insert: 

"SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Subsection 17 of section 20.1-02-05 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

17. Carry out a private land habitat and access improvement program by: 

a. Entering cost-sharing, habitat enhancement, and access agreements 
with landowners or agencies working on private land to help defray all 
or a portion of their share of local, state, or federally sponsored 
conservation practices considered beneficial to fish and wildlife . 

b. Leasing and developing fish and wildlife habitat or sport fishing areas 
on private land. Except for purposes of subdivisioncubdivisions i and j. 
public access to leased land may not be prohibited. 

c. Carrying out practices or designating an individual to carry out 
practices or authorizing or having the designee authorize landowners 
to carry out practices that will alleviate depredations caused by 
predatory animals and big game animals. 

d. Publishing a brochure on an annual basis describing areas funded 
from the game and fish department private land habitat and access 
improvement fund which are open to public access in this state. 

e. Receiving advice from the game and fish advisory board concerning 
expenditures from the game and fish department private land habitat 
and access improvement fund. 

f. Working with livestock producers experiencing chronic deer 
depredation problems to develop site-specific deer depredation 
management plans. 

g. Giving first consideration to producers impacted by deer foraging on 
stored winter forage when purchasing winter deer management 
supplies. 

h. Making available the sum of one million dollars from each biennial 
game and fish department appropriation to be used to provide feeding 
and other winter management practices to alleviate depredation 
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caused by big game animals. Any unexpended funds under this 
subdivision, up to two million dollars, are not subject to section 
54-44.1-11 and may be carried forward for expenditure in future 
bienniums. 

i. Making available the sum of one hundred thousand dollars from each 
biennial game and fish department appropriation to be used for food 
plots on private property for the purpose of providing winter feed. 
These food plots are not subject to public access considerations. 

L Assisting interested landowners in improving soil health and water 
quality and creating wildlife habitat." 

Page 2, after line 12, insert: 

"SECTION 4. TRANSFER - NORTH DAKOTA OUTDOOR HERITAGE FUND 
TO GAME AND FISH DEPARTMENT. The office of management and budget shall 
transfer the sum of $2,000,000 from the North Dakota outdoor heritage fund to the 
private land habitat and access improvement fund for the period beginning with the 
effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021. 

SECTION 5. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the 
private land habitat and access improvement fund, not otherwise appropriated, the sum 
of $2,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the game and fish 
department for the purpose of assisting interested landowners in improving soil health 
and water quality and creating wildlife habitat, for the period beginning with the 
effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021. This appropriation is a one-time 
funding item. 

• 

SECTION 6. TRANSFER - NORTH DAKOTA OUTDOOR HERITAGE FUND 
• TO SPECIAL ROADS FUND. The office of management and budget shall transfer the 

sum of $500,000 from the North Dakota outdoor heritage fund to the special roads fund 
for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021. 

SECTION 7. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the 
special roads fund, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $500,000, or so much of the 
sum as may be necessary, to the department of transportation for the purpose of 
recreational road access, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act, 
and ending June 30, 2021. This appropriation is a one-time funding item. 

SECTION 8. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the 
private land habitat and access improvement fund, the sum of $500,000, or so much of 
the sum as may be necessary, to the game and fish department for the purpose of 
implementing the private land habitat and access improvement program to assist 
interested landowners in improving soil health and water quality and creating wildlife 
habitat, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 
2021. This appropriation is a one-time funding item. 

SECTION 9. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 
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19.0501.01004 
Title.02000 

Adopted by the House Energy and Natural 
Resources Committee 

March 21, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2058 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and 
reenact subsection 17 of section 20.1-02-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to the powers of the director of the game and fish department; to provide an 
appropriation; to provide for a transfer; and to declare an emergency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 17 of section 20.1-02-05 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

17. Carry out a private land habitat and access improvement program by: 

a. Entering cost-sharing, habitat enhancement, and access agreements 
with landowners or agencies working on private land to help defray all 
or a portion of their share of local, state, or federally sponsored 
conservation practices considered beneficial to fish and wildlife. 

b. Leasing and developing fish and wildlife habitat or sport fishing areas 
on private land. Except for purposes of subdivisionsubdivisions i and j, 
public access to leased land may not be prohibited. 

c. Carrying out practices or designating an individual to carry out 
practices or authorizing or having the designee authorize landowners 
to carry out practices that will alleviate depredations caused by 
predatory animals and big game animals. 

d. Publishing a brochure on an annual basis describing areas funded 
from the game and fish department private land habitat and access 
improvement fund which are open to public access in this state. 

e. Receiving advice from the game and fish advisory board concerning 
expenditures from the game and fish department private land habitat 
and access improvement fund. 

f. Working with livestock producers experiencing chronic deer 
depredation problems to develop site-specific deer depredation 
management plans. 

g. Giving first consideration to producers impacted by deer foraging on 
stored winter forage when purchasing winter deer management 
supplies. 

h. Making available the sum of one million dollars from each biennial 
game and fish department appropriation to be used to provide feeding 
and other winter management practices to alleviate depredation 
caused by big game animals. Any unexpended funds under this 
subdivision, up to two million dollars, are not subject to section 
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54-44.1-11 and may be carried forward for expenditure in future 
bienniums. 

i. Making available the sum of one hundred thousand dollars from each 
bienpial game and fish department appropriation to be used for food 
plots on private property for the purpose of providing winter feed. 
These food plots are not subject to public access considerations. 

1. Assisting interested landowners in improving soil health and water 
quality and creating wildlife habitat. 

SECTION 2. GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION AND TRANSFER -
PRIVATE LAND HABITAT AND ACCESS IMPROVEMENT FUND - GAME AND FISH 
DEPARTMENT. 

1. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state 
treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $2,500,000, which the 
director of the office of management and budget shall transfer to the 
private land habitat and access improvement fund for the period beginning 
with the effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021. 

2. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the private land habitat and 
access improvement fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, 
the sum of $2,500,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the 
game and fish department for the purpose of assisting interested 
landowners in improving soil health and water quality and creating wildlife 
habitat, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act, and 
ending June 30, 2021. 

SECTION 3. GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION AND TRANSFER -
SPECIAL ROADS FUND - DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION. 

1. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state 
treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $500,000, which the 
director of the office of management and the budget shall transfer to the 
special roads fund for the period beginning with the effective date of this 
Act, and ending June 30, 2021. 

2. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the special roads fund in the 
state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $500,000, or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of transportation 
for the purpose of recreational road access, for the period beginning with 
the effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021. 

SECTION 4. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 
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19.0501.01005 
Title.03000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative D. Anderson 

March 25, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2058 

Of-, J /cJt/1 1 
/of 3 

In lieu of the amendments as printed on pages 1285-1287 of the House Journal, Senate Bill 
No. 2058 is amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 1, after "A Bl LL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and 
reenact subsection 17 of section 20.1-02-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to the powers of the director of the game and fish department; to provide an 
appropriation; to provide for a transfer; and to declare an emergency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 17 of section 20.1-02-05 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

17. Carry out a private land habitat and access improvement program by: 

a. Entering cost-sharing, habitat enhancement, and access agreements 
with landowners or agencies working on private land to help defray all 
or a portion of their share of local, state, or federally sponsored 
conservation practices considered beneficial to fish arid wildlife. 

b. Leasing and developing fish and wildlife habitat or sport fishing areas 
on private land. Except for purposes of subdi11isioncubdivisions i and j. 
public access to leased land may not be prohibited. 

c. Carrying out practices or designating an individual to carry out 
practices or authorizing or having the designee authorize landowners 
to carry out practices that will alleviate depredations caused by 
predatory animals and big game animals. 

d. Publishing a brochure on an annual basis describing areas funded 
from the game and fish department private land habitat and access 
improvement fund which are open to public access in this state. 

e. Receiving advice from the game and fish advisory board concerning 
expenditures from the game and fish department private land habitat 
and access improvement fund. 

f. Working with livestock producers experiencing chronic deer 
depredation problems to develop site-specific deer depredation 
management plans. 

g. Giving first consideration to producers impacted by deer foraging on 
stored winter forage when purchasing winter deer management 
supplies. 

h. Making available the sum of one million dollars from each biennial 
game and fish department appropriation to be used to provide feeding 
and other winter management practices to alleviate depredation 
caused by big game animals. Any unexpended funds under this 
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subdivision, up to two million dollars, are not subject to section 
54-44.1-11 and may be carried forward for expenditure in future 
bienniums. 

DP 3fo�/l· 
/of 3 

i. Making available the sum of one hundred thousand dollars from each 
biennial game and fish department appropriation to be used for food 
plots on private property for the purpose of providing winter feed. 
These food plots are not subject to public access considerations. 

1. Assisting interested landowners in improving soil health and water 
quality and creating wildlife habitat. 

SECTION 2. GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION AND TRANSFER -
PRIVATE LAND HABITAT AND ACCESS IMPROVEMENT FUND - GAME AND FISH 
DEPARTMENT. 

1. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state 
treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $2,000,000, which the 
director of the office of management and budget shall transfer to the 
private land habitat and access improvement fund for the period beginning 
with the effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021. 

2. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the private land habitat and 
access improvement fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, 
the sum of $2,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the 
game and fish department for the purpose of .assisting interested 
landowners in improving soil health and water quality and creating wildlife 
habitat, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act, and 
ending June 30, 2021. 

SECTION 3. GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION AND TRANSFER -
SPECIAL ROADS FUND - DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION. 

1. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state 
treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $500,000, which the 
director of the office of management and the budget shall transfer to the 
special roads fund for the period beginning with the effective date of this 
Act, and ending June 30, 2021. 

2. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the special roads fund in the 
state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $500,000, or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of transportation 
for the purpose of recreational road access, for the period beginning with 
the effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021. 

SECTION 4. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the 
private land habitat and access improvement fund, the sum of $500,000, or so much of 
the sum as may be necessary, to the game and fish department for the purpose of 
implementing the private land habitat and access improvement program to assist 
interested landowners in improving soil health and water quality and creating wildlife 
habitat, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 
2021. This appropriation is a one-time funding item. 

SECTION 5. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure." 
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Renumber accordingly 
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Date: 3 � l-[ q 
Roll Call Vote-#�:--,§.-----

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILURESOLUTION NO. &0.5'($_ 

House Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: ___ l_q_l _O_s_i'"O_{___._,..;;ao_\:...,0......-.0 ..... 3 ________ _ 
Recommendation: i![Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass O Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By MA SO{\ Seconded By -�,----------------
Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Chairman Porter v Rep. Lefor V 
Vice Chairman Damschen V Rep. Marschall V 
Rep. Anderson V Rep. Roers Jones V 
Rep Bosch v., Rep. Ruby V 
Reo. Devlin V Rao.Zubke \/ 
Rep. Heinert v / 

Rep. Keiser V Rep. Mitskog V 
Rep. Eidson t/ 

No Total 

Absent 

(Yes) ----------- --------------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date:3-�I- ( ct 
Roll Call Vote#: ;;z 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. J:iQfZ _ 
House Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: Jq,C6Dl.QlQD3 u,� �*1 ke!Dul 

Recommendation: MAdopt Amendment 
D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

0 Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Actions: 0 Reconsider 0 

Motion Made By __ ...,,.,z4h__,,,_...,,�"----.;......;:, .... -"--�- Seconded By 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Chairman Porter Rep. Lefor 
Vice Chairman Damschen Rep, Marschall 
Rep. Anderson Rep. Roers Jones 
Rep Bosch Rep. Ruby 
Rep. Devlin Rao.Zubke 
Rep. Helnert 
Rep. Keiser Rep. Mitskoo 

Rep. Eidson 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) __________ No _____________ _ 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

�� Ot-ct�atr 1wt+ct�e.- �
� � � � � Nb 



Date: O-� 1-(� 
Roll Call Vote#: 5 ---------

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. � �g _ 
House Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: ----------------------
Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

1K1'.Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
°liAs Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
)'{Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By ---��_;;.:....;.'_Se.£�--- Seconded By 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Chairman Porter V Rep. Lefor 
Vice Chairman Damschen -- Rep. Marschall 
Reo. Anderson V Reo. Roers Jones 
Rep Bosch V Rep. Ruby v� 
Rep. Devlin V Rep.Zubke V 

Rep. Helnert 
Rep. Keiser V Rep. Mitskog 

Reo. Eidson v 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) __ ____.l_�--- No __ O ______ _ 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

• 



Date: 3-2 l- 1 '1  
Roll Call Vote #: ff 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILURESOLUTION NO. 20/;2 2:( 
House Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: ----------------------
Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

0 Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
0 As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: � Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By ------,�---k, ........... ---- Seconded By 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Chairman Porter Rep. Lefor 
Vice Chairman Damschen Rep, Marschall 
Rep. Anderson Reo. Roers Jones 
Rep Bosch Rep. Ruby 
Rep. Devlin Rep. Zubke 
Rep. Helnert 
Rep. Keiser Rep. Mitskog 

Reo. Eidson 

No Total 

Absent 

(Yes) ---------- --------------

Floor Assignment \}f) �'Le., . VD:fe, 
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: 3 -� l - {Cf 
Rol l Call Vote#: 5 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. d� _ 
House Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: � � 0 I CO O  - rem.bt>e � I+� 
Recommendation: � Adopt Amendment 

Other Actions: 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

Motion Made By __ .... RJJ_.;;::;ai .... laJo::;;...i,,f----- Seconded By 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Chairman Porter Rep, Lefor 
Vice Chairman Damschen Rep. Marschall 
Rep. Anderson Rep. Roers Jones 
Rep Bosch Rep. Ruby 
Rep. Devlin Rao. Zubke 
Rep. Helnert 
Rep. Keiser Rep. Mitskog 

Rep. Eidson 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) __________ No _____________ _ 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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Date: 3- 2 {-/Cf 
Roll Call Vote #: G 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2, 0 � 

House Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC # or Description: ---------------------
Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

fQ.Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
tx(As Amended W"� 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
p(Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By ___ _._\4)-=-..... �--92£....__....__ _ _ Seconded By 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Chairman Porter V Rep. Lefor 
Vice Chairman Damschen V Rep. Marschall 
Rep. Anderson V Rep. Roers Jones 
Reo Bosch V. Reo. Ruby 
Reo. Devlin V Rao.Zubke 
Rep. Heinert 
Rep. Keiser v Rep. Mitskog 

Rep. Eidson v 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) -----tl-t-+----- No ___ ____......__ _______ _ 

Floor Assignment D. �-
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: 3- o'.2 � - 1'1 
Roll Call Vote # :  --.l..,__ __ _ 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES r-J 

BILURESOLUTION NO. W d.{) £ 2S 

House Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: ---------------------
Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: la Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By � fu� Seconded By Ref� 
Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Chairman Porter Rep. Lefor 
Vice Chairman Damschen Rep, Marschall 
Rep. Anderson Rep, Roers Jones 
Rep Bosch Rep. Ruby 
Rep, Devlin Rao.Zubke 
Rep, Helnert 
Rep. Keiser Reo. Mitskog 

Rep, Eidson 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) No ---------- --------------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: 3-�� ... Jq 
Roll Call Vote #:  ___ a�--

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILURESOLUTION NO. $8 .:l.OS-'2$ 

House Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: _____ 1_q_ ..... a ..... s ____ o ....... 1_. _V _____ I_D_0_5' _______ _ 

Recommendation: )k( Adopt Amendment 
D Do Pass O Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By � �SQ{\ 

Representatives Yes 

Chairman Porter 
Vice Chairman Damschen 
Rep, Anderson 
Rep Bosch 
Rep. Devlin 
Reo. Helnert 
Rep. Keiser 

Seconded By 

No Representatives Yes No 

Rep. Lefor 
Rep. Marschall 
Rep. Roers Jones 
Rep, Rubv 
Rep.Zubke 

Rep. Mitskog 
Rec. Eidson 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) __________ No ____________ _ 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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Date: � - �i- t '1 
Roll Call Vote #: :5 ---------

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILURESOLUTION NO. 2,D52i _ 
House Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: ---------------------
Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

(5z(' Do Pass O Do Not Pass 
!SiAs Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

� JVithout Committee Recommendation 
JX Re refer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By &.f �(71) Seconded By 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Chairman Porter V Rep. Lefor v 

Vice Chairman Damschen V Rep, Marschall V 
Rep. Anderson v Rep, Roers Jones 
Rep Bosch V Rep. Ruby v 
Rep. Devlin V Reo. Zubke 
Rep. Helnert AfJ 
Rep. Keiser v Rep. Mitskog V 

Rep. Eidson ,/ 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) ____ ......,_ _____ No -------"�--------

\ 
Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
March 22, 2019 9:23 AM 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_51_004 
Carrier: D. Anderson 

Insert LC: 19.0501.01004 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2058: Energy and Natural Resources Committee (Rep. Porter, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended ,  recommends 
DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee ( 1 4  YEAS, 
0 NAYS,  0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTI NG) .  SB  2058 was p laced on the Sixth order on 
the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  1 ,  after "A B I LL" rep lace the remainder of the b i l l  with "for an Act to amend and 
reenact subsection 1 7  of section 20 . 1 -02-05 of the North Dakota Centu ry Code, 
re lati ng  to the powers of the d i rector of the game and fish department; to provide an 
appropriat ion ;  to provide for a transfer; and to declare an  emergency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. S ubsection 1 7  of sect ion 20 . 1 -02-05 of the 
North Dakota Centu ry Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 7 . Carry out a private land habitat and access improvement prog ram by: 

a .  Entering cost-shari ng ,  hab itat enhancement, and access agreements 
with landowners or agencies working  on  private land to he lp  defray 
a l l  or a portion of their  share of loca l ,  state , or federa l ly  sponsored 
conservation practices considered beneficia l  to fish  and wi ld l ife .  

b .  Leasing and  develop ing fish and wi ld l ife habitat or sport fish ing areas 
on private land . Except for pu rposes of subdi•.«isionsubd iv is ions i and 
i, publ ic access to leased land may not be proh ib ited . 

c .  Carry ing out practices or designat ing an  i nd iv idua l  to carry out 
practices or authoriz ing or having  the designee authorize landowners 
to carry out practices that w i l l  a l leviate depredations caused by 
predatory an imals and big game an imals .  

d .  Pub l ish ing a brochu re on  an  annua l  basis describ ing a reas funded 
from the game and fish department private land habitat and access 
improvement fund which are open to pub l ic  access in th is state . 

e. Receiv ing advice from the game and fish advisory board concern ing 
expend itu res from the game and fish department private land habitat 
and access improvement fund .  

f. Working with l ivestock producers experiencing ch ron ic deer 
depredation problems to develop site-specific deer depredation 
management p lans .  

g .  G iv ing  fi rst consideration to  producers impacted by deer  forag ing on 
stored winter forage when pu rchasing winter deer  management 
supp l ies. 

h .  Making avai lable the s u m  o f  o n e  mi l l ion  do l lars from each bienn ia l  
game and fish department appropriat ion to be used to provide 
feed ing and other winter management practices to a l leviate 
depredation caused by b ig game an imals .  Any unexpended funds 
under th is subd ivis ion , up to two mi l l ion do l lars ,  are not subject to 
section 54-44. 1 - 1 1  and may be carried forward for expenditure in  
future bienn iums.  

i .  Mak ing avai lable the sum of one hundred thousand dol lars from 
each b ienn ial game and fish  department appropriation to be used for 
food plots on private property for the pu rpose of prov id ing winter 
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feed . These food plots are not subject to publ ic access 
considerations. 

L Assisting interested landowners i n  improving soi l health and water 
qual i ty and creating wi ld l ife habitat. 

SECTION 2. GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION AND TRANSFER -
PRIVATE L AND H ABITAT AND ACCESS IMPROVEMENT FUND - G AME AND 
FISH DEPARTMENT. 

1 .  There is appropriated out of any moneys in  the general fund in  the state 
treasury, not otherwise appropriated , the sum of $2 , 500, 000, which the 
d i rector of the office of management and budget shall transfer to the 
private land habitat and access improvement fund for the period 
beg inn ing with the effective date of th is Act, and ending June 30, 202 1 . 

2 .  There i s  appropriated ou t  o f  any  moneys in  the private land habitat and 
access improvement fund in  the state treasury, not otherwise 
appropriated, the sum of $2 , 500, 000, or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary, to the game and fish department for the purpose of assisting 
interested landowners in  improving soi l  health and water qual ity and 
creating wi ld l ife habitat, for the period beg inn ing with the effective date of 
th is Act, and ending June 30,  202 1 . 

SECTION 3. GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION AND TRANSFER -
SPECIAL ROADS FUND - DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION. 

1 .  There is appropriated out of any moneys in  the genera l  fund i n  the 
state treasury, not otherwise appropriated , the sum of $500 , 000,  which 
the d i rector of the office of management and the budget shal l  transfer to 
the special roads fund for the period beg inn ing  with the effective date of 
this Act, and ending June 30,  202 1 . 

2 .  There i s  appropriated ou t  of any  moneys in  the specia l roads fund in  the 
state treasury, not otherwise appropriated , the sum of $500 , 000,  or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of 
transportation for the purpose of recreational road access ,  for the period 
beg inn ing with the effective date of th is Act, and ending June 30, 202 1 . 

SECTION 4. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure . "  

Renumber accord ing ly 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2058: Energy and Natural Resources Committee (Rep. Porter, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , recommends 
DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee ( 1 1  YEAS, 
2 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING) . SB 2058 was placed on the Sixth order on 
the calendar. 

I n  l ieu  of the amendments as pri nted on pages 1 285-1 287 of the House Journal , Senate B i l l  
No .  2058 is amended as fol lows: 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  1 ,  after "A B I LL" replace the remainder of the b i l l  with "for an Act to amend and 
reenact subsection 1 7  of section 20. 1 -02-05 of the North Dakota Centu ry Code,  
re lat ing to the powers of the d i rector of the game and fish  department; to provide an 
appropriation ;  to provide for a transfer; and to declare an emergency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISL ATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1 .  AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 7  of sect ion 20. 1 -02-05 of the 
North Dakota Centu ry Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows : 

1 7 . Carry out a private land habitat and access improvement program by: 

a. Enteri ng cost-shari ng, habitat enhancement ,  and access agreements 
with landowners or agencies work ing on  private land to he lp  defray 
al l  or a portion of the i r  share of local , state , or federal l y  sponsored 
conservation practices cons idered beneficial to fish and wi l d l ife .  

b .  Leasing and developing fish and  wi ld l ife hab itat or sport fish ing areas 
on private land .  Except for pu rposes of subdivisionsubd iv is ions i and 
i ,  pub l ic access to leased land may not be proh i b ited . 

c .  Carry ing out practices or designati ng an i nd iv id ual to carry out 
practices or authoriz ing or hav ing the des ignee authorize landowners 
to carry out practices that wi l l  al lev iate depredations caused by 
predatory an imals and big game an imals .  

d .  Pub l ish ing  a b rochu re on an ann ual bas is descri b ing areas fu nded 
from the game and fish department private land habitat and access 
improvement fund wh ich are open to pub l ic  access in th is state. 

e. Receiv ing advice from the game and fish advisory board concern ing 
expend itu res from the game and fish department private land habitat 
and access improvement fu nd .  

f. Working with l ivestock producers experienc ing ch ron ic deer 
depredation problems to develop site-specific deer depredation 
management plans .  

g .  Giv ing fi rst cons ideration to prod ucers impacted by deer foraging on 
stored winter forage when pu rchas ing winter  deer management 
suppl ies .  

h .  Making avai lab le the sum o f  one  m i l l ion do l lars from each b ienn ial 
game and fish department appropriat ion to be used to provide 
feed ing and other winter management practices to al leviate 
depredation caused by big game an imals . Any unexpended funds 
under th is subd ivis ion ,  u p  to two m i l l ion do l lars , are not subject to 
section 54-44 . 1 - 1 1  and may be carried forward for expend iture i n  
futu re bienn i ums .  
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i .  Mak ing ava i lab le the s u m  of one hundred thousand do l lars from 
each b ienn ia l  game and fish  department appropriat ion to be used for 
food plots on  private property for the pu rpose of prov id ing winter  
feed . These food p lots are not subject to pub l ic  access 
cons iderations .  

L Ass ist ing in terested landowners in improving so i l  health and water 
qua l i ty and creat i ng wi l d l ife hab itat. 

SECTION 2. GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION AND TRANSFER -
PRIVATE LAND H ABITAT AND ACCESS IMPROVEMENT FUND - GAME AND 
FISH DEPARTMENT. 

1 .  There is appropriated out of any moneys in  the general fu nd i n  the state 
treasu ry, not otherwise appropriated , the sum of $2 , 000 , 000 ,  which the 
d i rector of the office of management and budget shal l  transfer to the 
private land hab itat and access improvement fu nd for the period 
beg i n n i ng  with the effective date of th is Act, and end ing  June 30 , 202 1 . 

2 .  There is appropriated ou t  of any  moneys i n  t he  private l and  hab itat and  
access improvement fund i n  t he  state treasu ry, not otherwise 
appropriated ,  the sum of $2 , 000 ,000 ,  or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary, to the game and fish  department for the pu rpose of assist i ng 
i n terested landowners i n  im proving soi l  health and water qua l ity and 
creati ng  w i ld l ife hab itat, for the period beg i nn ing with the effective date of 
th is Act, and end ing  June  30 ,  202 1 . 

SECTION 3. GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION AND TRANSFER -
SPECI AL ROADS FUND - DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION. 

1 .  There is appropriated out of any moneys i n  the genera l  fund  i n  the 
state treasury, not otherwise appropriated , the sum of $500 , 000 ,  which 
the d i rector of the office of management and the budget sha l l  transfer to 
the specia l  roads fund for the per iod beg i nn ing with the effective date of 
th is Act, and end ing  June  30 ,  2021 . 

2 .  There is appropriated out  of  any moneys i n  the  special roads fund i n  the 
state treasu ry, not otherwise appropriated ,  the sum of $500 , 000 ,  or  so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of 
transportation for the pu rpose of recreat ional road access , for the period 
beg i n n i ng  with the effective date of th is Act , and end ing  June 30, 202 1 . 

SECTION 4. APPROPRI ATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys i n  
t he  private land hab i tat and access improvement fu nd ,  t he  sum of  $500 , 000 ,  or  so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, to the game and fish department for the 
pu rpose of i m plementi ng  the private land hab itat and access improvement prog ram 
to assist i n terested landowners i n  improvi ng  so i l  health and water qua l i ty and 
creati ng w i ld l ife hab i tat, for the period beg i nn ing with the effective date of th is Act, 
and end ing  J une  30 ,  202 1 . Th is appropriat ion is a one-time fund ing  i tem.  

SECTION 5. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure . "  

Renumber accord i ng ly 
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2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

SB 2058 
4/2/2019 

34456 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Risa Bergquist by Caitlin Fleck  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 17 of section 20.1-02-05 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to the powers of the director of the game and fish department; to 
provide an appropriation; to provide for a transfer; and to declare an emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 A 

 
Chairman Delzer: Out of energy and natural resources.  
 
Representative D. Anderson: The bill number is 2058. SB2058 originally started out 
as a hunting bill, and the original language in this bill went into HB1412. But today I am 
here to talk about the amendment.  
 
Chairman Delzer: I think you should go in and talk about 03000, the last version. 
 
Representative D. Anderson: After the language from 2058 went onto 1412, we went 
in and tried to make a habitat bill to add some cost share for food plots or nesting cover 
in the prairie. If farmers had a spot that they thought they could put a food plot or habitat 
for the pheasants that’s what we went into. We tried to come up with a program, we 
worked with the game and fish. We were originally going to take $200,000 from the 
general fund and give that to the game and fish. The game and fish was going to put 
$500,000 from their budget into this program, and also put $500,000 into the special 
award fund. The committee didn’t agree with the use the heritage fund so they voted to 
use the general fund. Now all the language in that is gone and we are going to the 
amendment. The amendment is section 1 line 6 (see attachment A).  
 
Chairman Delzer: This is a bill that went out of the house earlier, the senate is trying to 
change it for the board makeup of the heritage fund, this is something that should be 
handled itself and that other issue will be dealt with when the house bill comes back 
across. I did visit with Senator Anderson who was a prime sponsor who had no problem 
with it.  
 
5:20 Representative Schmidt: This last summer, I was working with a couple of soil 
conservation districts on an effort to make a proposals and application to the outdoor 
heritage fund to do some dense nesting on the seeps. I met with the director of the 
game and fish, and I was told that that request of the outdoor heritage fund folks was 
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made twice and has been declined twice. To me that practice is soil health, it’s water 
quality, and wildlife habitat and they have declined it. I see on line15, item J, on page 2 
talks that, which is exactly what it is with land owners, and it was declined by heritage, is 
this to make that up? 
 
Representative D. Anderson: The way it was originally we planned to take the money 
out of the heritage fund but the committee didn’t approve it. If you look under the initial 
directives under the heritage fund advisory board, they are all dealing with public land 
for the sportsman, and I think in directive B it has language about saline and improving 
and maintaining water quality and soil. I think that this fit right in with the heritage fund 
and that is why we went this route.  
 
Chairman Delzer: The natural resources committee didn’t support taking the money out 
of the heritage fund. I think if we try to change that back and take it out, we would have 
quite a bite on that floor. I think we should just consider the amendment and keep these 
2 separate as far as if you want to change the duties of the heritage fund, I think that 
should be in a different bill.  
 
Representative D. Anderson: I think this is going to be a discussion that is going to be 
held in the future because there is 9 million in there and there will be another 15 million. 
And if you look at the century code there is… 
 
Chairman Delzer: There is guideline to what they are supposed to do and what they 
aren’t, and I believe that is what that other bill is. There are also some mitigation 
questions on the other mitigation bills. Do we want to start another private lands fund 
with the general fund? So we either kill it the way it sits or we consider the amendment. 
This is an issue during the interim where the committee tied 6 to 6, and the industrial 
commission didn’t know whether or not to take it.  
 
Representative D. Anderson: I looked at the minutes for the last heritage fund meeting 
and they did have 15 people there, but with only 7 or 8 of them showing up, it can make 
the recommendation without the majority of the board.  
 
Chairman Delzer: If they have a quorum the way it is right now, they could do it with ¾ 
less than the majority of the members on the committee.  
 
Representative Schmidt: I believe that the soil health, water quality, and wildlife 
habitat is served by seeding dense nesting covered species into these saline areas, and 
we are getting more and more saline areas in ND. And for the outdoor heritage fund to 
reject it two times with the soil conservation districts and then turn around and try to get 
it covered with general funds, I don’t think that it’s fair, I think that it should be back in 
the outdoor heritage fund and be a priority.  
 
Meeting closed.  
 
 

 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

SB 2058 
4/2/2019 

34459 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Risa Bergquist by Caitlin Fleck  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 17 of section 20.1-02-05 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to the powers of the director of the game and fish department; to provide an 
appropriation; to provide for a transfer; and to declare an emergency.  
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Delzer: Called the meeting back to order for SB 2058. Section 2 of it appropriates 
2 million to that and section 3 appropriates 500,000 to the special roads fund and paragraph 
4 appropriates 500,000 to lands. So we decided not to put the amendment on the bill. The 
amendment that was proposed is a hog house amendment and it would make it the same as 
that section and it would change the number of individuals on the board. It doesn’t change 
anything else about the board. 
 
Representative Brandenburg: I will move the amendment 01007 
 
Representative Meier: Second  
 
Voice vote. Motion carries.  
 
Chairman Delzer: We have the amended bill before us.  
 
Representative Meier: Do pass as amended. 
 
Representative Beadle: Second. 
 
A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 12 Nay: 6 Absent: 3. Motion carries.  
 
Flood assignment: Representative Bert Anderson  
 
Meeting closed.  
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE B I LL NO. 2058 

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on pages 1403-1404 of the House 
Journal, Senate Bill No. 2058 is amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and 
reenact subsection 6 of section 54-17 .8-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating 
to the North Dakota outdoor heritage advisory board. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 6 of section 54-17.8-06 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

6. The advisory board shall reeommendmay not forward a grant application to 
the commission unless the apprm.ial of grantsapplication is for funding 
activities that fulfill the purposes of this chapter and the application 
receives a favorable recommendation from a majority of the advisory board 
members." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0501.01007 
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Rol l Ca l l  Vote #: 1 

House Appropriations 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2058 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or  Description :  1 9 .0501 .01 007 

Recommendation : IZI Adopt Amendment 

Committee 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Act ions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By _R_ep._r_e_se_n_t_at_iv_e_B_r_a_n_de_n_b_u_r..._g__ Seconded By Representative Meier 

Representatives Yes No 
Cha i rman Delzer  
Representative Kempen ich 
Representative Anderson 
Representative Bead le 
Representative Bel lew 
Representative Brandenburg 
Representative Howe 
Representative Kreidt 

Representative Martinson 
Representative Meier 

Representative Monson 
Representative Nathe 
Representative J .  Nelson 

Representative Sanford 
Representative Schatz 
Representative Schm idt 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) -----------

Floor Assignment 

Representatives 

Representative Schob inQer 
Representative Vigesaa 

Representative Boe 
Representative Holman 
Representative Mock 

No 

Voice Vote/Motion Carries 

Yes No 
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2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2058 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Descri ption :  

Recommendation :  D Adopt Amendment 

Committee 

IZl Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
IZl As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Act ions : D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By Representative M C\.CJr' Seconded By Representative . �e.o..c\ \e. 

Representatives 
Cha i rman Delzer 
Representative Kempen ich 
Representative Anderson 
Representative Bead le 
Representative Bel lew 
Representative B randenburg 
Representative Howe 
Representative Kreidt 

Representative Martinson 
Representative Meier 

Representative Monson 
Representative Nathe 
Representative J _  Nelson 

Representative Sanford 
Representative Schatz 
Representative Schm idt 

Total (Yes) 

Absent 3 

12 

Yes No Representatives 
X 

A 
X Representative Schobinger 
X Representative Vigesaa 
X 

X 
X Representative Boe 

X Representative Holman 
X Representative Mock 
X 

X 
X 

X 

X 
X 

A 

No 6 

Floor Assignment Representative D. Anderson 

Motion Carries 

Yes No 

X 
X 

A 
X 
X 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2058, as amended: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , recommends DO PASS 
( 1 2  YEAS, 6 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AN D NOT VOTING) .  SB 2058,  as amended , was 
p laced on the S ixth order on the calendar. 

I n  l ieu  of the amendments adopted by the House as pr inted on pages 1 403-1 404 of the 
House Jou rna l ,  Senate B i l l  No. 2058 is amended as fo l lows: 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  1 ,  after "A B I LL" replace the remainder of the b i l l  with "for an Act to amend and 
reenact subsection 6 of section 54-1 7 . 8-06 of the North Dakota Centu ry Code, 
relat ing to the North Dakota outdoor heritage advisory board . 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 6 of section 54- 1 7 . 8-06 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows : 

6 .  The advisory board shall recommendmay not forward a grant appl ication 
to the comm ission un less the approval of grants�ppl ication is  for fund ing 
activit ies that fu lfi l l  the pu rposes of th is chapter and the appl ication 
receives a favorable recommendation from a majority of the advisory 
board members . "  

Renumber  accord i ng ly  

( 1 )  D E S K  ( 3 )  COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_57 _006 
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Senate B i l l  2058 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact chapter 20 . 1 -
0 1 -08 and 20. 1 -05-04 of the North Dakota Century 

Code, relating to use of i nfrared, red , green ,  or amber 
artific ia l  l ight wh i le hunting coyote and fox. 
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Prepared by Rick Tischaefer, President of the North Dakota Fur  H unters and Trappers 
Association PO Box 334 ,  Butte North Dakota 58723 

January 20 1 9  

5� 2DS8 
1. 1 1 . , q  

±t- I �. , 



Purpose - Amend Century Code 20. 1 -0 1 -08 to a l low incl ude i nfrared , state the artificial 
l ight m ust produce a red , green ,  or amber color and include coyote and fox; and amend 
Centu ry Code 20 . 1 -05-04 to include coyote and fox. 

Why th is legis lation is needed - Safety, h uman and otherwise. Many tasks includ i ng 
(and not l im ited to) walk ing , sitting ,  or observ ing ;  determ in ing objects , targets , and 
d istances ; attend ing to personal equ ipment; hunt ing with a partner; and safely hunting 
afoot p resent s ign ificant cha l lenges wh i le n ight hunt ing coyote and fox. I n  earl ier 
sess ions ,  leg is lators recogn ized these identica l  chal lenges and needs for safely n ight 
hunt ing raccoon and beaver and proactively i ncluded red or amber fi ltered artificial l ight 
i n  the Centu ry Code .  

North Dakota Centu ry Codes 20. 1 -01 -08 and  20 . 1 -05-04 exist and  a l low provisions and 
equ i pment for n ight hunting raccoon and beaver. This leg islation s imply improves and 
amends the Century Code to include a l lowing i nfrared , the color g reen , and add coyote 
and fox. Moreover, reducing the potential for harm that exists with the aforementioned 
safety chal lenges are ach ieved by a l lowing the use of artificia l  l ight ( infrared , red , green ,  
or amber) wh i le h u nt ing coyote , fox, raccoon ,  and beaver. 

Background - H u nt ing coyote and fox at n ight in North Dakota is a cha l leng ing and 
reward i ng outdoor activity .  Most n ight h unters employ daytime predator cal l i ng  
techn iq ues such as uti l iz ing mouth blown or electron ic predator ca l ls ;  ca l l i ng across or  
upwind to rema in  u ndetected by smel l ;  us ing warm camouflage cloth ing that blends with 
the terra i n ;  layi ng , s itting ,  or stand ing near or aga inst terra in  featu res to h ide a human 
s i lhouette ; and choosing an appropriate weapon - except a l l  a re done at n ight. Keys to 
being  successfu l inc lude scouting or having previous knowledge of the area ; good 
marksmansh ip sk i l ls  with practice shooting at n ight; re l iable equ ipment that functions in  
extreme temperatu res ; practiced operation of a l l  equ ipment wh i le i n  the dark;  being 
phys ical ly fit ; and working with a partner or two . A mouth b lown or electron ic predator 
cal l  is  used to ent ice a coyote or fox close enough for identification and safe and 
accurate shot p lacement. An average predator cal l i ng session from one location 
(referred to as a "stand") is 30 m inutes . Factors such as weather, temperatu re ,  and 
avai lab le t ime determ ine the amount of stands a person may have in  one n ight. Night 
hunt ing coyote and fox in  North Dakota beg ins on the day after the close of the deer 
season unt i l  March 1 5 . This season includes most of the harshest weather we 
experience in North Dakota . 

Night h u nt ing i n  North Dakota is an important part of our fu rbearer hunt ing heritage . 
Many North Dakotans cherish , p lan , and participate in  this regu lated outdoor activity . It 
is cha l leng ing ;  provides a connection with nature and our landscape; and provides 
benefits as a regu lated harvest season for these species . Our  n ight hunt ing heritage 
m i rrors other hunt ing activities as participation includes fam i ly or friends, not on ly to 
share i n  the experience ,  but provide a measure of safety wh i le hunting at n ight. 

Centu ry Code 20 . 1 -0 1 -08 a l lows a red or amber fi ltered artific ia l  l ight wh i le n ight hunting 
afoot for raccoon and beaver and Century Code 20 . 1 -05-04 a l lows the use of a flash l ight 
with a power source of no greater than six volts . This type of l ight is used (not l im ited to 
these) to passively i l l um inate the terrain ,  hazards ,  rocks , trees, branches; for attention to 
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personal  equ ipment; identify a hunting partners location ; and assist i n  safely hunting 
afoot. 

N ight h u nt ing raccoon and beaver with red or amber fi ltered artific ial l ight has 
requ i rements .  F i ltered artific ial l ight proh ib its the use of a wh ite l ight (although wh ite is 
solely perm itted at the point of k i l l  for raccoon wh i le n ight hunt ing) ; a power source less 
than six volts proh ib its the use of larger capacity spotl ights common with 1 2  volt power 
sou rces ; and wh i le afoot proh ib its hunt ing from a veh icle or boat which may provide 
easy access to a 1 2  volt power source . 

Technologica l  advances have created l ight emitt ing d iode (LED) devices that emit 
vis ib le l ig ht when e lectric cu rrent passes through it . Commonly known as LED l ights , 
more and more appl ications exist due to enhanced clarity , various color appl ications, 
g reater efficiency ,  and lower cost. Flash l ights and head lamps are currently ava i lable 
with g reen and red colored LED l ights , foregoing the need to use a red , g reen , or amber 
fi lter over a wh ite l ight. 

Red or amber fi ltered artific ial l ight unden iably provides a g reat measu re of safety wh i le 
n ight h u nt ing raccoon and beaver. It a l lows for accu rate identification of raccoon and 
beaver as red or  amber fi ltered artificia l  l ight is a lmost un recogn izable to noctu rnal  
mammals .  Mammal  eyes have cones and rods that assist with seeing the spectrum of 
co lor .  U n l ike human eyes , noctu rnal  mammals do not visual ize the red , g reen ,  or amber 
spectrum of color .  Nocturnal  mammal eyes a lso have a specia l  surface i n  the back of 
the eye that when &hown with red , green ,  or amber artific ia l  l ight ,  causes a reflective eye 
sh ine .  Th is is beneficial i n  locating and identifying the nocturnal  mammal .  

Pr ior to  20 1 6 , n ig ht hunting coyote and fox was on ly  a l lowed with the use of natu ra l l ight 
(starl i ght o r  moon l ig ht) . In  20 1 6 , the North Dakota Game and Fish Department al lowed 
n ig ht h unt ing coyote and fox with thermal  and n ight vision equ ipment. A season was 
estab l ished i n  conj unction with th is opportun ity - beg inn ing the day after the close of the 
deer g u n  season u nt i l  March 1 5 . Un l ike other hunt ing seasons,  prescribed da i ly hunting 
hours do not exist. The exception is the beg inn ing - 0001 hours on the beg inn i ng date ; 
and the end - 2400 hours on March 1 5 . Although thermal  and n ight vision equ ipment is 
perm itted , the use of artific ial l ight is not. Thermal and n ight vision equ ipment is a l lowed 
by Governor's Proclamation ,  whereas a l lowing artific ia l l ight requ i res amend ing the 
Centu ry Code . .  Artific ial l ight is needed (not l im ited to these) to passively i l l um inate 
terra i n ,  hazards ,  rocks , trees, branches ; for attention to personal  equ ipment; identify a 
hunt ing partners location ; and assist in  safely hunting afoot. Human safety is severely 
comprom ised without extend ing the same artific ial l ight perm issible for n ight hunting 
raccoon and beaver to n ight hunting coyote and fox. 

Thermal  and n ig ht vis ion equ ipment is configu red i n  monocu lar ,  b inocu lar ,  or tubu lar 
scope optics . I n  this context, thermal and n ight vision equ ipment is used for n ight 
hunting , but that is where s imi larities end . For n ight hunt ing noctu rnal mammals ,  thermal 
equ ipment processes a heat signature to visual ize the mammal and can be used in  
complete and tota l darkness . Conversely, n ight vision equ ipment uses avai lab le l ight 
from the sta rs o r  moon to visual ize the mammal . N ight vision equ ipment i ncludes a bu i lt 
i n  flash l ight to enhance what is observed through the optic because avai lable l ight is 
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always a l im it ing factor. This flash l ight is ca l led an infrared i l l um inator. The red artificial 
l ight p roduced by an  i nfrared i l l uminator is observed by cast ing the l ight aga inst a 
reflective su rface ( l i ke wh ite paper) or by looking at the fore end of the i l l um inator from a 
sl ight ang le (stra ight on is not recommended) .  

I nfrared , red ,  g reen , or amber artificia l l ight must remain  as  options for personal choice.  
Green artific ia l l ig ht serves the same pu rpose as red or amber artific ial l ig ht. The 
spectrum of g reen a rtificial l ight ,  l i ke red or amber artific ial l ight, p rovides the same 
reflective eye sh ine whi le not clearly identifiable by nocturnal mammals .  Green artificia l 
l ight, l i ke red or  amber artificial l ight , is passive and commonly used with hand-held and 
head lamp flash l ights in other hunting related activities . It is a usefu l l ight for setting up 
decoys , gett ing equ ipment into a b l ind , travers ing terra in  to get to a stand , camp chores 
du ring darkness , recovering game, and many other outdoor tasks. Depend ing on the 
surfaces , red artific ia l  l ight may appear to be absorbed in what it contacts more than 
g reen artific ia l  l ight .  Green artificial l ight p rovides a measure of add itional clarity and 
depth in what it contacts . The benefits of g reen artific ia l l ight wh i le n ight hunt ing 
surfaced i n  recent years wh i le used with fera l hog appl ications ,  and may now be 
preferred by some over the red or amber artificia l l ight .  

The amendment to Century Code 20. 1 -0 1 -08 adds ", includ i ng infrared," ,  and provides 
that "The artific ia l  l ight must produce a red, green,  or amber color when used in the 
hunt ing of coyote, fox. raccoon or beaver, except when taking a raccoon treed or at 
bay . "  wi l l  a l low us ing both fi ltered artific ia l  l ight (a red , g reen , or amber fi lter  over a wh ite 
l ight) , i nfrared , or existing l ight technology whereby the bu lb  itself produces the red , 
g reen or  amber color. 

Fund ing - No fisca l appropriation is requ i red for th is leg is lation .  
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Examples of Red and Green Artificia l  L ight 
(3 to 4 .5 volts - depend ing on manufactu rer) 

1 .  F lash l ight  with red l ight 

2 .  Head lamp flash l ight with g reen l ight 

3 .  F lash l ight with red l ight 

4 .  Head lamp flash l ight with red l ights 
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Example of I nfrared Artific ia l L ig ht 
(3 to 4.5 volts - depend ing on manufactu rer) 

N ight v is ion equ ipment is configu red i n  monocu lar, b inocu lar, and tubu lar scope 
mounted optics that i nclude an infrared i l l um inator flash l ight .  This infrared i l l um inator 
flash l ig ht (shown) is  scope mounted (the part of the scope with the yel low label) . The 
red artific ia l  l i ght p roduced by an i nfrared i l l um inator is observed by casting the l ight 
aga inst a reflective surface ( l ike white paper) or  by looking at the fore end of the 
i l l um inator from a s l ight angle (stra ight on is not recommended) .  The red l ight is a h igh 
frequency and long wavelength l ight and presents the appearance of being scattered 
rather than focused . N ight vision equ ipment is designed to operate i n  low l ight 
cond it ions .  Th is photo was taken i n  low l ight so as not to damage the components of the 
scope wh i le operating ,  yet provide evidence to the red artific ia l  l ight produced by the 
i nfrared i l l um inator flash l ight . 
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N O LA. S NAT - Johnson. Marne 
#7.. 

-------....... ------------------- �-
From: Un ruh ,  Jessica K. 

Sent: 

To: 

Thu rsday, J anua ry 17, 2019 2 :46 PM 

N O LA, S NAT - Johnson,  Ma rne 

Subject: FW: 2058 

-----O rig i na l  Message-----

Fro m :  J u l ie Schaff E l l i ngson <j e l l i ngson@ndstockmen .org> 

Sent :  Th u rsday, J a nua ry 17, 2019 2 : 26 PM 

To : U n ru h, Jessica K . <j k un ru h @ nd .gov> 

Subject :  2058 

* * * * *  CAUTIO N :  Th is ema i l  o rig inated from an outside sou rce . Do not c l ick l i n ks or open attachments un less you know 

they a re safe . * * * * *  

He l l o .  I was u na b le t o  attend the hea r ing th i s  morn ing o n  S B  2058 beca use o f  a confl ict ing hea r ing a t  the same t ime .  The 

North Da kota Stockmen's Assoc iat ion supports the b i l l  however. P lease reco rd ou r  support as pa rt of the record . We 

app reciate you r  cons iderat ion of the b i l l .  Thank  you for the he l p !  

Rega rd s, 

J u l i e  E l l i ngson 

223-2522 

Sent from my iPhone 
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Representative Donald W. Longmuir 
District 2 
P.O.  Box 1 1 9 1 
Stan ley, N D  58784- 1 1 9 1 

dlongmuir@nd.gov 

February 28 ,  20 1 9  

8B2058 

�;.\ ?ss zoss 

2.28.19 

I Attaqiment 1 . ,_ 

COMMITTEES : 
Edu cation 

Pol it ical Subdiv isions 

Chairman Porter and members of the House Energy and Natural Resources 
Committee my name is Don Langmuir and I am a Representative from District 
2 ,  which includes Burke County, Divide County, part of Mountrail County and 
all of Williams County except most of the City of Williston . Thank you for giving 
me the opportunity to appear before you today to support 8B2058 . 

This past summer I was contacted by a constituent regarding the possibility of 
adding red or amber filtered light for night hunting of coyote and fox. We 
contacted the North Dakota Game & Fish Department to see if this was 
something that could be done administratively through the hunting 
proclamation.  In visiting with the Department is was pointed out that this type 
of change could not be taken care of administratively or through the 
proclamation but would require legislative action . During our conversations it 
was noted that North Dakota Fur Hunters and Trappers Association was also 
looking to address this issue . It was determined that by working together with 
the Department a bill could be developed which would meet the needs of all the 
parties .  The result was 8B2058 . 

I have handed out an amendment which everyone who worked on the bill agrees 
would help meet the goals set by the groups .  

Chairman Porter and members of  the Committees I would encourage you to 
read the written testimony submitted by Rick Tischaefer, President of the North 
Dakota Fur Hunters and Trappers Association . Mr. Tischaefer wanted to be 
present testify but business obligations did not allow him the opportunity. 

Chairman Porter and members of the Committee,  thank you again for the 
opportunity to appear before your committee and I would stand for questions . 
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19.0501.01001 
Title. 

SB 2058 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 2.2s.19 

Representative Langmuir Attachment 1 
February 26 , 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2058 

Page 2, line 11, after "volts" insert "while hunting afoot" 

Renumber accordingly 
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19.0501.01004 
Title.02000 

Adopted by the Energy and Natural Resources 
Committee 

March 21, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2058 

Page 1, l ine 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with " for an Act to amend and 
reenact 20.1-02-05 relating to the powers of the director of the game and fish 
department; to provide an appropriation; to provide for a transfer; and to declare an 
emergency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1 .  AMENDMENT. Subsection 17 of section 20.1-02-05 of the 
North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

17. Carry out a private land habitat and access improvement program by: 

a. Entering cost-sharing, habitat enhancement, and access agreements 
with landowners or agencies working on private land to help defray all 
or a portion of their share of local, state, or federally sponsored 
conservation practices considered beneficial to fish and wildlife. 

b. Leasing and developing fish and wildlife habitat or sport fishing areas 
on private land. Except for purposes of subdivisionsubdivisions i and j, 
public access to leased land may not be prohibited. 

c. Carry ing out practices or designating an individual to carry out 
practices or authorizing or having the designee authorize landowners 
to carry out practices that will alleviate depredations caused by 
predatory animals and big game animals. 

d. Publishing a brochure on an annual basis describing areas funded 
from the game and fish department private land habitat and access 
improvement fund which are open to public access in this state. 

e. Receiving advice from the game and fish advisory board concerning 
expenditures from the game and fish department private land habitat 
and access improvement fund. 

f. Working with livestock producers experiencing chronic deer 
depredation problems to develop site-specific deer depredation 
management plans. 

g. Giving first consideration to producers impacted by deer foraging on 
stored winter forage when purchasing winter deer management 
supplies. 

h. Making available the sum of one million dollars from each biennial 
game and fish department appropriation to be used to provide feeding 
and other winter management practices to alleviate depredation 
caused by big game animals. Any unexpended funds under this 
subdivision, up to two million dollars, are not subject to section 
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54-44.1-11 and may be carried forward for expenditure in future 
bienniums. 

i .  Making available the sum of one hundred thousand dollars from each 
biennial game and fish department appropriation to be used for food 
plots on private property for the purpose of providing winter feed. 
These food plots are not subject to public access considerations. 

i. Assisting interested landowners in improving soil health and water 
quality and creating wildlife habitat. 

SECTION 2.GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION AND TRANSFER- PRIVATE 
LAND HABITAT AND ACCESS IMPROVEMENT FUND - GAME AND FISH 
DEPARTMENT . 

.L There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state 
treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $2,500,000, which the 
director of the office of management and budget shall transfer to the 
private land habitat and access improvement fund for the period beginning 
with the effective date of the Act, and ending June 30, 2021. 

2. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the private land habitat and 
access improvement fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, 
the sum of $2,500,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the 
game and fish department for the purpose of assisting interested 
landowners in improving soil health and water quality and creating wildlife 
habitat, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and 
ending June 30, 2021. 

SECTION 3. GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION AND TRANSFER -
SPECIAL ROADS FUND - DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION . 

.L There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state 
treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $500,000, which the 
director of the office of management and the budget shall transfer to the 
special roads fund for the period beginning with the effective date of this 
Act, and ending June 30, 2021. 

2. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the special roads fund in the 
state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $500,000, or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary to the department of transportation 
for the purpose of recreational road access, for the period beginning with 
the effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021. 

SECTION 4. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure."  

Renumber accordingly 
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Title .  

Prepared by t h e  Legislative Counci l staff for 
Representative D. Anderson 

March 25, 201 9  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE B ILL NO. 2058 
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I n  l i eu of the amendments as printed on pages 1 285- 1 287 of the House Journa l ,  Senate Bi l l  
No; 2058 is amended as fol lows: 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 ,  after "A BI LL" replace the remainder of the b i l l  with "for an Act to amend and 
reenact subsect ion 1 7  of sect ion 20. 1 -02-05 of the North Dakota Century Code ,  
re lat ing to  the powers of  the d irector of  the game and fish department ;  to  provide an 
appropriat ion; to provide for a transfer; and to  declare an emergency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1 .  AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 7  of sect ion 20. 1 -02-05 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 7 . Carry out a private land habitat and access improvement program by: 

a .  Entering cost-sharing ,  habitat enhancement ,  and access agreements 
with landowners or agencies working on private land to help defray a l l  
or a portion of the i r  share of loca l ,  state , or federal ly sponsored 
conservation practices considered beneficial to fish and wi ld l ife . 

b .  Leasing and deve loping fish and wi ld l ife habitat or sport fishing areas 
on private land. Except for purposes of subdivisionsubdivisions i and j. 
publ ic access to l eased land may not be prohib i ted. 

c. Carrying out pract ices or designating an i ndividual to carry out 
practices or authorizing or having the designee authorize landowners 
to carry out pract ices that wi l l  a l leviate depredations caused by 
predatory animals and big game animals .  

d .  Publ ish ing a brochure on an annual basis describ ing areas funded 
from the game and fish department private land habitat and access 
improvement fund which are open to publ ic access in th i's state .  

e .  Rece iving advice from the game and fish .advisory board concern i ng 
expenditures from the game and fish department private land habitat 
and access improvement fund .  

· f. Working with l ivestock producers experiencing chron ic deer 
depredation problems to deve lop site-specific deer  depredation 
management p lans.  

g .  Giving first conside ration t o  producers impacted by deer  foraging on 
stored winter forage when  purchasing winter deer  management 
suppl ies .  

h .  Making avai lable the sum of one mi l l ion dol lars from each b ienn ia l  
game and fish department appropriat ion to be used to provide feeding 
and other winter management practices to a l leviate depredation 
caused by big game animals .  Any unexpended funds under this 
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subdivis ion , up to two mi l l ion dol lars ,  are not subject to section 
54-44. 1 -1 1  and may be carried forward for expenditure in  future 
bienn iums. 

i .  Making avai lable the sum of one hundred thousand dol lars from each 
biennia l  game and fish department appropriation  to be used for food 
plots on private property for the purpose of providing winter feed. 
These food plots are not subject to publ ic access considerations. 

1. Assisting interested landowners in improving soi l  health and water 
qual ity and creating wi ldl ife habitat . 

SECTION 2. GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION AND TRANSFER -
PRIVATE LAND HABITAT AND ACCESS IMPROVEMENT FUND - GAME AND FISH 
DEPARTMENT. 

1 .  There is appropriated out of any moneys in  the general  fund in  the state 
treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $2 ,000,000, which the 
director of the office of management and budget shal l  transfer to the 
private land habitat and access improvement fund for the period beginn ing 
with the effective date of th is Act, and ending June 30, 202 1 . 

2 .  There is appropriated out of any moneys in  the private land habitat and 
access improvement fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, 
the sum of $2 , 000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the 
game and fish department for the purpose of assist ing i nterested 
landowners in improving soi l health and water qual ity and creat ing wildl ife 
habitat , for the period beg inn ing with the effective date of this Act, and 
ending June 30, 202 1 . 

SECTION 3. GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION AND TRANSFER -
SPECIAL ROADS FUND - DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION. 

1 .  There is appropriated out of any moneys in  the genera l  fund in  the state 
treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $500, 000, which the 
director of the office of management and the budget shal l  transfer to the 
special roads fund for the period beginning with the effective date of this 
Act, and ending June 30, 2021 . 

2 .  . There is appropriated out of any moneys in  the specia l  roads fund in the 
state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $500, 000, or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of transportation 
for the purpose of recreational road access, for the period beg inn ing with 
the effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021 . 

SECTION 4. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys i n  the 
private land habitat and access improvement fund, the sum of $500, 000, or so much of 
the sum as may be necessary, to the game and fish department for the purpose of 
implementing the private land habitat and access improvement program to assist 
interested landowners i n  improving soi l  health and water qual ity and creating wildl ife 
habitat, for the period beg inn ing with the effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 
2021 . Th is appropriation is a one-time funding item . 

SECTION 5. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure . "  
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Renumber accordingly 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative D. Anderson 

April 1, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE B I LL NO.  2058 

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on pages 1403-1 404 of the House 
Journal, Senate Bill No. 2058 is amended as follows: 

Page 1 ,  line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and 
reenact subsection 6 of section 54-1 7.8-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating 
to the North Dakota outdoor heritage advisory board. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 6 of section 54-17.8-06 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

6. The advisory board shall reeommendmay not forward a grant application to 
the commission unless the apprmml of grantsapplication is for funding 
activities that fulfill the purposes of this chapter and the application 
receives a favorable recommendation from a majority of the advisory board 
members." 

Renumber accordingly 
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